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other business, vocation, or employ-
ment at the time such individual be-
gins to serve as a member of the Com-
mission will appropriately limit such 
activity no later than 90 days after be-
ginning to serve as such a member. 

§ 7.7 Prohibition against making com-
plaints and investigations public. 

(a) Commission employees are sub-
ject to criminal penalties if they dis-
cuss or otherwise make public any 
matters pertaining to a complaint or 
investigation under 2 U.S.C. 437g, with-
out the written permission of the per-
son complained against or being inves-
tigated. Such communications are pro-
hibited by 2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(12)(A). 

(b) Section 437g(a)(12)(B) of title 2 of 
the United States Code provides as fol-
lows: ‘‘Any member or employee of the 
Commission, or any other person, who 
violates the provisions of [2 U.S.C. 
437g(a)(12)(A)] shall be fined not more 
than $2,000. Any such member, em-
ployee, or other person who knowingly 
and willfully violates the provisions of 
[2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(12)(A)] shall be fined 
not more than $5,000.’’ 

§ 7.8 Ex parte communications in en-
forcement actions. 

In order to avoid the possibility of 
prejudice, real or apparent, to the pub-
lic interest in enforcement actions 
pending before the Commission pursu-
ant to 2 U.S.C. 437g: 

(a) Except to the extent required for 
the disposition of enforcement matters 
as required by law (as, for example, 
during the normal course of an inves-
tigation or a conciliation effort), no 
Commissioner or member of any Com-
missioner’s staff shall make or enter-
tain any ex parte communications. 

(b) The prohibition of this section 
shall apply from the time a complaint 
is filed with the Commission pursuant 
to 2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(1) or from the time 
that the Commission determines on the 
basis of information ascertained in the 
normal course of its supervisory re-
sponsibilities that it has reason to be-
lieve that a violation has occurred or 
may occur pursuant to 2 U.S.C. 
437g(a)(2), and such prohibition shall 
remain in force until the Commission 
has concluded all action with respect 
to the enforcement matter in question. 

(c) Any written communication pro-
hibited by paragraph (a) of this section 
shall be delivered to the General Coun-
sel, who shall place the communication 
in the case file. 

(d) A Commissioner or member of 
any Commissioner’s staff involved in 
handling enforcement actions who re-
ceives an offer to make an oral commu-
nication or any communication con-
cerning any enforcement action pend-
ing before the Commission as described 
in paragraph (a) of this section, shall 
decline to listen to such communica-
tion. If unsuccessful in preventing the 
communication, the Commissioner or 
employee shall advise the person mak-
ing the communication that he or she 
will not consider the communication 
and shall prepare a statement setting 
forth the substance and circumstances 
of the communication. Within 48 hours 
of receipt of the communication, the 
Commissioner or any member of any 
Commissioner’s staff shall prepare a 
statement setting forth the substance 
and circumstances of the communica-
tion and shall deliver the statement to 
the General Counsel for placing in the 
file in the manner set forth in para-
graph (c) of this section. 

(e) Additional rules governing ex 
parte communications made in connec-
tion with Commission enforcement ac-
tions are found at 11 CFR 111.22. Rules 
governing ex parte communications 
made in connection with public fund-
ing, Commission audits, litigation, 
rulemakings, and advisory opinions are 
found at 11 CFR part 201. 

PART 8—COLLECTION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE DEBTS 

Sec. 
8.1 Purpose and scope. 
8.2 Debts that are covered. 
8.3 Administrative collection of claims. 
8.4 Bankruptcy claims. 
8.5 Interest, penalties, and administrative 

costs. 

AUTHORITY: 31 U.S.C. 3701, 3711, and 3716– 
3720A, as amended; 2 U.S.C 431 et seq., as 
amended; 31 CFR parts 285, and 900–904. 

SOURCE: 75 FR 19875, Apr. 16, 2010, unless 
otherwise noted. 
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§ 8.1 Purpose and scope. 

This part prescribes standards and 
procedures under which the Commis-
sion will collect and dispose of certain 
debts owed to the United States, as de-
scribed in 11 CFR 8.2. The regulations 
in this part implement the Debt Collec-
tion Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. 
3701, 3711, and 3716–3720A, as amended; 
and the Federal Claims Collection 
Standards, 31 CFR parts 900–904. The 
activities covered include: the collec-
tion of claims of any amount; compro-
mising claims; suspending or termi-
nating the collection of claims; refer-
ring debts to the U.S. Department of 
the Treasury for collection action; and 
referring debts under this part 8 of 
more than $100,000 (exclusive of any in-
terest and charges) to the Department 
of Justice for litigation. 

§ 8.2 Debts that are covered. 

(a) The procedures covered by this 
part apply to debts that are either 
owed by current and former Commis-
sion employees, or arise from the pro-
vision of goods or services by contrac-
tors or vendors doing business with the 
Commission. 

(b) The procedures covered by this 
part do not apply to any of the fol-
lowing debts: 

(1) Debts that are covered by 11 CFR 
111.51, regarding debts arising from 
compliance matters, administrative 
fines, alternative dispute resolution, 
repayments, and court judgments aris-
ing under the statutes specified in 11 
CFR 111.51(a). 

(2) Debts involving criminal actions 
of fraud, the presentation of a false 
claim, or misrepresentation on the part 
of the debtor or any other person hav-
ing an interest in the claim. 

(3) Debts based in whole or in part on 
conduct in violation of the antitrust 
laws. 

(4) Debts under the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986. 

(5) Debts between the Commission 
and another Federal agency. The Com-
mission will attempt to resolve inter-
agency claims by negotiation in ac-
cordance with Executive Order 12146, 3 
CFR pp. 409–12 (1980 Comp.). 

(6) Debts that have become subject to 
salary offset under 5 U.S.C. 5514. 

§ 8.3 Administrative collection of 
claims. 

(a) The Commission shall act to col-
lect all claims or debts. These collec-
tion activities will be undertaken 
promptly and follow up action will be 
taken as appropriate in accordance 
with 31 CFR 901.1. 

(b) The Commission may take any 
and all appropriate collection actions 
authorized and required by the Debt 
Collection Act of 1982, as amended by 
the Debt Collection Improvement Act 
of 1996, 31 U.S.C. 3701 et seq. The U.S. 
Department of the Treasury regula-
tions at 31 CFR 285.2, 285.4, 285.7 and 
285.11, and the Federal Claims Collec-
tion Standards issued jointly by the 
Department of Justice and the U.S. De-
partment of the Treasury at 31 CFR 
parts 900–904 also apply. The Commis-
sion has adopted these regulations by 
cross-reference. 

(c) The Commission will refer to the 
Dept. of Treasury all debt that has 
been delinquent for more than 180 days, 
and may refer to the Dept. of Treasury 
any debt that has been delinquent for 
180 days or less. On behalf of the Com-
mission, the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury will attempt to collect the 
debt, in accordance with the statutory 
and regulatory requirements and au-
thorities applicable to the debt and ac-
tion. This may include referral to an-
other debt collection center, a private 
collection contractor, or the Depart-
ment of Justice for litigation. See 31 
CFR 285.12 (Transfer of debts to Treas-
ury for collection). This requirement 
does not apply to any debt that: 

(1) Is in litigation or foreclosure; 
(2) Will be disposed of under an ap-

proved asset sale program; 
(3) Has been referred to a private col-

lection contractor for a period of time 
acceptable to the U.S. Department of 
the Treasury; or 

(4) Will be collected under internal 
offset procedures within three years 
after the debt first became delinquent. 

(d) The U.S. Department of the 
Treasury is authorized to charge a fee 
for services rendered regarding referred 
or transferred debts. The Commission 
will add the fee to the debt as an ad-
ministrative cost, in accordance with 
11 CFR 8.5. 
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§ 8.4 Bankruptcy claims. 

When the Commission learns that a 
bankruptcy petition has been filed by a 
debtor, before proceeding with further 
collection action, the Commission will 
take any necessary action in accord-
ance with the provision of 31 CFR 
901.2(h). 

§ 8.5 Interest, penalties, and adminis-
trative costs. 

(a) The Commission shall assess in-
terest, penalties, and administrative 
costs on debts owed to the United 
States Government in accordance with 
31 U.S.C. 3717 and 31 CFR 901.9. 

(b) The Commission shall waive col-
lection of interest and administrative 
costs on a debt or any portion of the 

debt that is paid in full within thirty 
days after the date on which the inter-
est begins to accrue. 

(c) The Commission may waive col-
lection of interest, penalties, and ad-
ministrative costs if it: 

(1) Determines that collection is 
against equity and good conscience or 
not in the best interest of the United 
States, including when an administra-
tive offset or installment agreement is 
in effect; or 

(2) Determines that waiver is appro-
priate under the criteria for com-
promise of debts set forth at 31 CFR 
902.2(a). 

(d) The Commission is authorized to 
impose interest and related charges on 
debts not subject to 31 U.S.C. 3717, in 
accordance with common law. 
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